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          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Good afternoon.

          3  I want to welcome you here this afternoon.  The

          4  Committee on Immigration, Oversight, Day Laborers in

          5  New York City, and also on Intro #592.

          6                 Once again, good afternoon.  My name

          7  is Councilman Stewart and, as Chair of the

          8  Immigration Committee, I want to welcome you all to

          9  the Committee's Oversight Hearing on Day Laborers

         10  and Intro 592.

         11                 First, I want to recognize my

         12  colleagues John Liu and Gentile, who's from

         13  Brooklyn.  John Liu from Queens and also I want to

         14  welcome the Mayor's Office of Immigrant Affairs and

         15  the many advocates and day laborers who are here

         16  today.

         17                 I want to commend, in particular,

         18  Council Members Vincent Gentile, Helen Sears, Bill

         19  DeBlasio and Eric Gioia for their hard work and

         20  thoughtfulness on the issue of day laborers.

         21                 The five of us recently introduced

         22  Intro 592 which will create a commission that will

         23  study the feasibility of creating job centers for

         24  day laborers that will be jointly implemented by the

         25  New York City and the community- based
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          2  organizations.

          3                 There are at least 60 sites in New

          4  York metropolitan region where day laborers

          5  congregate to seek employment.  Day laborers who

          6  find work at informal sites often face significant

          7  workplace exploitation.  Most day laborers have

          8  either not been paid or have been underpaid for

          9  their work at some point.  Day laborers are at times

         10  abandoned at worksites and deprived breaks for food

         11  or water and they often face unsafe workplaces where

         12  they need to operate heavy or dangerous machinery

         13  without proper safety equipment or precaution, or

         14  even training.

         15                 In addition, circumstances

         16  surrounding the congregation of day laborers on city

         17  streets have generated community concerns.  Job

         18  centers designed to connect day laborers with

         19  employers in settings that provide a comfortability

         20  have been proven models of success for day laborers

         21  or even employers and concerned community members.

         22  Other jurisdictions have supported development of

         23  job centers that help prevent workplace exploitation

         24  and address community concerns.

         25                 For example, Los Angeles helps
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          2  administer at least 18 job centers citywide.  Here

          3  in New York City, existing job centers run by

          4  community- based organizations seek not only to

          5  insure workers rights and safety and hold employers

          6  accountable but provide educational and social

          7  services to day laborers.  These centers can help

          8  improve the workplace rights and well- being of day

          9  laborers while decreasing the reliance on informal

         10  sites that have created community concerns.

         11                 Intro 592 will be a first step

         12  towards creating a solution that will meet the needs

         13  of day laborers and communities citywide.  I am

         14  eager to hear more about this issue from the Mayor's

         15  Office of Immigrant Affairs, advocates and day

         16  laborers themselves.  First, however, I would like

         17  to turn to Council Members Gentile for a few opening

         18  remarks.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you

         20  Mr. Chairman and thank you so much for acting and

         21  moving on this bill to a hearing in such a quick

         22  manner after it was re- introduced just a little

         23  while ago.

         24                 I want to also welcome some of the

         25  members of Latin American Workers Project, Supredes
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          2  (phonetic), Javier Gallardo and also Reverend Terry

          3  Joy (phonetic) from Project Hospitality and the

          4  Reform Church.  All have been instrumental in

          5  helping me establish the job center in my part of

          6  Brooklyn. And that's part of how Intro 592 came to

          7  be, a bill that would take the first step to

          8  addressing the problems and difficulties faced by

          9  the New York City's increasing day laborer

         10  population.

         11                 For years, day laborers, as we know,

         12  face harsh working conditions.  There's problems

         13  faced by day laborers include extremely low wages,

         14  long hours, little training and sometimes dangerous

         15  conditions.  This emerging part of our population

         16  has suffered many times at the hands of unscrupulous

         17  and also often unlicensed contractors for too long.

         18                 Recent survey of day laborers found

         19  that New York City alone, 85%, experience some type

         20  of employment abuse. Compounding the problems a lack

         21  of organized and safe centers around the City where

         22  day laborers gather to search for work.  As a

         23  result, laborers can congregate on street corners

         24  spill off into residential blocks waiting to be

         25  picked up for a day's work of hard work.
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          2                 Starting in the morning, these

          3  laborers fill out sidewalks waiting for contractors

          4  to drive by and pick them up. Residents of different

          5  communities have long called for an answer to the

          6  often large groups that develop on the street

          7  corners. Luckily, we have found that we can achieve

          8  to help both day laborers and City residents.  The

          9  creation of Day Labor Job Centers around the country

         10  has proved to be extremely successful in terms of

         11  addressing the issues and the concerns that the day

         12  laborers constituency has, as well as residents of

         13  many neighborhoods.

         14                 These center serve as formerly

         15  designated hiring sites for employers and most often

         16  contractors hire laborers under regulated conditions

         17  including minimum wages.  This provide for a

         18  preferable alternative rather than congregate on the

         19  streets and being subjected to unscrupulous

         20  employers.  That's why these centers, I have said,

         21  are win- win for both the workers and the

         22  surrounding communities.  This bill will create a

         23  special commission to study the feasibility of job

         24  centers in New York City.  Several years ago with

         25  the help of the groups I mentioned before and the
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          2  Independence Community Foundation, we crated a job

          3  center in Bensonhurst on Bay Parkway.  Some of those

          4  workers are here today.

          5                 While this center's had its ups and

          6  downs, it's been successful in addressing the issues

          7  associated with day laborers. However, Bensonhurst

          8  is not the whole City.  There's diversity in our

          9  City and that's why this commission will study the

         10  feasibility of job centers which, by the nature of

         11  its study, can identify what areas these centers

         12  would be most successful.  So I'm looking forward to

         13  the hearing.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, one of the prime

         15  sponsors of our bill, Councilwoman Helen Sears,

         16  unfortunately, is ill and could not be with us

         17  today.  So, with your permission, Mr. Chairman, I

         18  would like to read a statement from Councilwoman

         19  Sears.  May I do that? Thank you.

         20                 Councilwoman Sears' testimony is as

         21  follows:

         22                 New York City is proud to say that it

         23  is a City of immigrants, without whose workforce

         24  this City would be the poorer. However, the present-

         25  day policies toward immigration and the labor force
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          2  has created an environment of greed, abuses to

          3  immigrant day laborers and quality of life issues

          4  facing the communities. Councilwoman Sears goes on

          5  to say we need to address the issue of skilled and

          6  unskilled workers in this country, state and city,

          7  many of whom are undocumented, have only recently

          8  immigrated to this country.  Intro 592, in which I

          9  am a prime sponsor, by establishing commission to

         10  study the feasibility of creating public/private

         11  partnerships to develop and operate job centers for

         12  immigrant day laborers, would be a positive step

         13  toward finding solutions to this most pressing

         14  social problem.  The proliferation of immigrant day

         15  laborers.

         16                 It behooves us to address the

         17  humanity of this very complex issue because,

         18  although we cannot lawfully endorse illegal

         19  immigration, we cannot let our City's quality of

         20  life suffer, we cannot let employers exploit

         21  workers.  Since 2002, says Councilwoman Helen Sears,

         22  I have held numerous meetings in my district office

         23  seeking ways to address this issue.  I've even

         24  prime- sponsored Resolution 447 of 2002 asking for a

         25  City Council hearing which was held by the Committee
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          2  in General Welfare in January of 2003.

          3                 As many day laborers can attest, law

          4  enforcement has been doing their job, but a lack of

          5  adequate solutions have prevented the affected

          6  communities from seeing any alleviation of their

          7  concerns.  I believe a commission could more

          8  thoroughly look at all alternatives on dealing with

          9  this issue and will allow us to find an equitable

         10  way to correct wrongs.

         11                 Councilwoman Sears concludes by

         12  thanking yours truly, Councilman Eric Gioia, Bill

         13  DeBlasio for their support and hard work and Council

         14  Member Kendall Stewart, the Chair of the Immigration

         15  Committee for holding a hearing on this bill.

         16                 Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  We'd like to

         18  hear from Council Member John Liu.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Mr.

         20  Chairman for holding this important hearing.  First,

         21  for the record, I'd like to request that my name be

         22  added to the list of Sponsors in our Intro. 592.

         23  I'm not sure why it wasn't on it but, certainly, I

         24  would like to be listed as a sponsor.  It's a bill

         25  that would begin to address a problem that is
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          2  growing, not only in New York City, but in other

          3  parts of this region and most likely throughout the

          4  country as well and that is that we have a large

          5  labor force that, for whatever reason, is relegated

          6  to standing on street corners looking for day jobs,

          7  one day at a time.   The only action that seems to

          8  have been taken by the City or any level of

          9  government is police round- ups where cops are send

         10  out there to issue summonses or take the workers

         11  away or to tell them to move along.   That is

         12  clearly insufficient.

         13                 The police have often been called on

         14  to scenes because complaints from local residents

         15  and businesses have been registered.  Many times the

         16  complaints are valid and so the police do their job.

         17    But, that is not the real solution to this dilemma

         18  that we face.  The fact is, we have many, many

         19  people who are ready, willing and able to work.

         20  They work for themselves, they work to support their

         21  families and yet, our government has not been doing

         22  anything to address their needs.  This is not only a

         23  lack of dignity for these hard- working men and

         24  women who often have to stand on the street corners,

         25  but it is also a matter of protection for the
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          2  workers.  Protection that these workers deserve,

          3  rightfully so.

          4                 Just about a year ago, almost a year

          5  ago, in June of 2004 we had a tragic case of a day

          6  laborer who was killed on the job at a construction

          7  site when a wall fell on top of him.  This man could

          8  not even be identified by his own employer.  That is

          9  an extreme case of what happens when we, as a

         10  government, do not do anything to address the needs

         11  of the day laborers that so often work in the

         12  communities of our City often at very low wages sent

         13  into doing the most dangerous jobs.  So it is high

         14  time that we, at least, create this commission to

         15  really start looking at potential solutions.  The

         16  creation of job centers where these workers can

         17  begin to seek work, gainful work with dignity and

         18  with some measure of protection from the government

         19  of what is supposedly the capital of the world.  At

         20  the same time, many of the concerns of local

         21  residents and business people would be addressed as

         22  well.

         23                 So, Mr. Chairman, I commend you.  I

         24  commend Council Members Gentile and Sears for

         25  putting forth this legislation and, if for nothing
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          2  else, I will do everything I can to push this bill

          3  forward in the name of Jen Kwo Shen (phonetic) who

          4  was killed on the job in June of 2004.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you

          6  Council Member.  At this time, we'd like to hear

          7  from the Administration.  We know that the

          8  Commissioner has been a friend of immigrants and has

          9  been out there working since he came on board.  I'm

         10  delighted to have him, at least tell us where the

         11  Administration stands on these issues and at least

         12  bring us up to date as far as immigration and the

         13  day laborers are concerned.  I guess you have some

         14  support there.  If you could just identify the

         15  support.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Certainly.

         17  Good afternoon Chairman Stewart and Members of the

         18  Committee and City Council. First, let me introduce

         19  myself for the record.  I'm Commissioner Guillermo

         20  Linares, Mayor's Office of Immigrant Affairs.

         21  Joining me to my right and your left, Mr. Chair, is

         22  Deputy Commissioner Azi Khalili and to my left, your

         23  right, is my Counsel Jimmy Yan.  I want to thank you

         24  for the opportunity to testify about the matter of

         25  immigrant day laborers in New York City.
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          2                 What would a day without immigrants

          3  look like?  Many of our industries would collapse.

          4  Immigrant and limited English proficient LEP workers

          5  form an increasingly large segment of the American

          6  workforce.  New immigrants account for half of the

          7  growth in the civilian workforce between 1990 and

          8  2001.  In the middle Atlantic and New England

          9  states, including New York, new immigrants provided

         10  the entire labor force growth from 1991 to the year

         11  2000.

         12                 Immigrants make up half of New York

         13  City's workforce but comprise 57% of low-wage

         14  workers and 69% of low skill workers. Nearly half of

         15  all foreign- born workers and two thirds of low-

         16  wage immigrant workers are not proficient in

         17  English, according to the 2000 Census.  In New York

         18  City, 23% of all workers are limited English

         19  proficient.  A day laborer community comprises an

         20  important and widespread portion of the City's

         21  workforce.  According to a 2003 study, approximately

         22  six to eight thousand day laborers work in New York

         23  City.  They are overwhelmingly immigrants from

         24  Mexico and Central and South America but they're

         25  also from Eastern Europe, South Asia, China and the
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          2  Caribbean.

          3                 The Bloomberg Administration is

          4  cognizant of the challenges surrounding immigrant

          5  day laborers as they affect workers, community

          6  residents and businesses and has taken pro active

          7  steps on different fronts to address these issues.

          8                 First, Mayor Bloomberg issued

          9  Executive Order 41 to affirm and strengthen the

         10  City's commitment to serving all New Yorkers

         11  regardless of immigrant status.  This policy's

         12  critical to encourage immigrant day laborers to

         13  access available core City services such as

         14  children's health insurance, a full range of

         15  preventive primary and acute medical care, domestic

         16  violence counseling, emergency shelters, police

         17  protection, consumer fraud protections and

         18  protection against discrimination through the Human

         19  Rights Commission.

         20                 To further promote access to City

         21  services, the Mayor signed Local Law 73 to improve

         22  translation and interpretation services at the

         23  City's major health and human services agencies.

         24  Under the Mayor's directive, our office coordinates

         25  comprehensive and effective implementation of the
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          2  Language Access Law.

          3

          4                 In addition, our Office works in

          5  collaboration with the Department of Small Business

          6  Service, SBS, to improve workforce opportunities for

          7  immigrant and LEP communities.  That is, limited

          8  English proficient communities.  With the Small

          9  Business Service department, we established an

         10  immigrant access working group, the Queens Workforce

         11  One Career Center or also called One- Stop Center,

         12  the City's main program for workforce services and

         13  we're expanding this process to other One- Stop

         14  citywide.

         15                 We're also engaged in community

         16  collaborations to safe- guard worker's protections

         17  and conditions.  For example, we're participating in

         18  a New York City Committee for Occupational Safety

         19  and Health, NYCOSH, and 9/11 Immigrant Worker Health

         20  and Education Project, a new initiative to raise

         21  awareness about the post 9/11 health and safety

         22  issues.  An estimated 1,800 to 2,000 day laborers,

         23  mostly immigrants, perform post 9/11 clean- up work

         24  subjecting themselves to significant health risks.

         25  Our Office also participates with the Department of
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          2  Health and Mental Hygiene in the Restaurant Industry

          3  Roundtable, an initiative of the Restaurant

          4  Opportunity Center of New York, ROC New York also

          5  called, to improve labor condition for restaurant

          6  workers and support the restaurant industry.

          7                 Furthermore, our Office met with

          8  several City agencies, including the Department of

          9  Building, the NYPD, to discuss strategies to improve

         10  immigrant occupational safety.  We also met with

         11  representatives of day laborers specifically to hear

         12  their concerns.

         13                 Recently, we held a roundtable on

         14  partnerships to support immigrant communities.  It's

         15  purpose was to assist our Office in a strategic

         16  planning effort.  The day- long event brought

         17  together senior City officials, immigrant community

         18  leaders and foundations to identify common goals and

         19  strategies.  We included day laborer representatives

         20  in this process and we will continue to include them

         21  in our on- going strategic planning.

         22                 On the federal level, Mayor Bloomberg

         23  supports comprehensive immigration reforms that

         24  provides a clear path to citizenship for immigrants

         25  who live and work in the U.S.  This is an important
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          2  step towards integrating immigrant workers and day

          3  laborers within our society.  The Administration is

          4  also committed to expediting the process whereby

          5  immigrants obtain permanent residence and

          6  naturalization so they more readily and quickly get

          7  integrated.

          8                 The Administration supports the goals

          9  of Intro 592 to examine day labor in the City.

         10  Strategic strategies to educate and better protect

         11  day laborers and address public safety concerns.

         12  However, the Administration has concerns about the

         13  bill in its current form.  The bill's provision for

         14  the creation of a commission raises serious legal

         15  questions that it would give the speaker the power

         16  to appoint some commission members.

         17                 The bill would provide commission

         18  members with the power of public officers to request

         19  information from agencies in other entities.  These

         20  agencies and entities would then be required to

         21  comply with the information requested to the full

         22  extent of the law.  I am advised that, under the

         23  Charter, however, only the Mayor has the power to

         24  appoint public officers and that the Mayor's power

         25  may not be limited by local law unless the law is
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          2  first approved by referendum.

          3                 We are committed to working with day

          4  laborers and other state holders to devise creative

          5  strategies for educating day laborers on worker

          6  health and safety protections, facilitating access

          7  to services and addressing public safety and quality

          8  of life concerns.  We will continue to work with the

          9  immigrant communities and other partners on this

         10  issue and look forward to working with the Council

         11  to explore common approaches.

         12                 Again, thank you, Mr. Chair, for the

         13  opportunity to testify.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Commissioner I

         15  applaud your testimony but there are a couple of

         16  questions that I have that maybe you can clear- up

         17  for us.

         18                 What is the Immigrant Access Working

         19  Group doing? What are they actually doing?  The

         20  Immigrant Access Working Group that you mentioned in

         21  your testimony.

         22                 MR. YAN:  Are you referring to the

         23  one that works with the one- stop centers?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Yes, that's what

         25  I'm talking about.  What they're actually doing.

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2                 MR. YAN:  It's a working group of

          3  representatives of immigrants serving community-

          4  based organizations and the leadership of the one-

          5  stop career centers and also their partners, various

          6  levels of government and private sector partners to

          7  look at issues of access for immigrants to the one-

          8  stop centers to make sure to create strategies of

          9  reaching out to immigrant communities to let them

         10  know about the one- stop center services and to

         11  improve policies and procedures at the one- stops to

         12  make them more accessible to immigrants.  One result

         13  of this working group has been the development of a

         14  citywide language access policy that SBS formed that

         15  will apply to all the one- stops around the City and

         16  in the structuring of individualized language access

         17  plans at each one- stop.  And so we started this at

         18  the Queens one- stop center because that's the most

         19  long- standing center and because that's a

         20  particularly rich immigrant borough and we're moving

         21  the same collective community- based process to

         22  centers around the City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: How many step

         24  centers you have?

         25                 MR. YAN:  Currently there are five.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Five?  Do you

          3  realize that we have about 60 day laborer sites

          4  where people congregate?  About 60 of them in New

          5  York City, different areas that they congregate

          6  right now?

          7                 MR. YAN:  The Department of Small

          8  Business Services will be expanding the reach of

          9  their one- stop centers very soon with community

         10  affiliates that will be connected to the One Stop

         11  centers but serving different communities around the

         12  borough in neighborhoods where the one- stops are

         13  now located.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Mr. Chair, the

         15  one- stop centers are part of the initiative that

         16  the Department of Small Business is undertaking and

         17  we are partners with them in this process.  I had

         18  the opportunity to visit the one in Queens which is

         19  perhaps the one which has gone the furthest along.

         20  We want to take this type of service to other

         21  boroughs and, what is guiding this center is

         22  workforce development and primarily emphasizing on

         23  the needs of new immigrants.  I think that this is

         24  one dimension that may come into play as we begin to

         25  expand and cover the other boroughs to make sure
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          2  that we integrate a dimension that brings into the

          3  loop day laborers as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Does the

          5  Mayor's Office of Immigrant Affairs support the

          6  creation of a formal job center in any place in New

          7  York City?  I just want to be sure that- you're

          8  saying that we have these one- stop centers but

          9  they're not really doing the same thing that a job

         10  center will do.  There may be a one- stop center for

         11  social services or where to get information and all

         12  of that but I'm asking specifically does the Mayor's

         13  Office of Immigrant Affairs support the creation of

         14  a formal job center for day laborers.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  The best way

         16  for me to respond to you is to express a full

         17  commitment to approaching the creation of a

         18  mechanism that would allow us, as a City, in a

         19  comprehensive way to assist workers, in this case

         20  laborers in our City.  To accomplish this, I am as a

         21  new Commissioner, engaged in quite a proactive way

         22  to see how, strategically, best to pursue this.  We

         23  know that whatever it is that we come up with as an

         24  administration we want it to be guided by those who

         25  are advocating and working closely with day
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          2  laborers, those institutions.  That is why I have a

          3  meeting with a New York Coalition, that has recently

          4  been put together, to help guide how we approach

          5  being effective in responding to the needs of day

          6  laborers, but also to respond to the needs of the

          7  newest New Yorkers who happen to be immigrants.  I

          8  think we want to look comprehensively at how we can

          9  best respond to the needs of workers in the City of

         10  New York.  Of course, this is highly beneficial.  We

         11  benefit and we know that a very strong segment of

         12  our workforce is immigrant and part of my mandate

         13  and my mission is really to look for the best

         14  approaches and I believe that the Mayor is fully

         15  committed to pursuing setting up the best and

         16  strongest mechanism to help us build on the strength

         17  that immigrants bring to the City.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: You said in your

         19  testimony, basically, that the Administration

         20  supports the goal of Intro 592, but you have some

         21  problems as to the make- up of that Commission. I am

         22  inclined to have a sit down with you thereafter to

         23  really find out exactly what is your objection but,

         24  could you elaborate a little bit more now as to what

         25  do you object in this bill.  What you really
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          2  objecting to the make- up, the appointments by the

          3  Speaker you said something about?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LINARES: What I believe

          5  was intended when we said that, in general terms, we

          6  support what the local law is pursuing.  In fact,

          7  most of what my testimony conveys is precisely the

          8  mission of what my office is doing.  It's in line

          9  with what is intended by this local law.  However,

         10  legally in the context of the law, the proposed

         11  structure that is being presented to form this

         12  commission there is clearly legal interpretation

         13  that we believe in the Administration is counter to

         14  what the Charter mandate is and the powers that are

         15  stipulated there.  They fall clearly on the side of

         16  the Mayor and so that is an issue.  In the matter of

         17  what its intention is, I think that there's full

         18  commitment on our part to work with you to address

         19  how we can structure this so that we can then work

         20  together and look for effective ways of responding

         21  to the challenge.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right.

         23  Before I call on Council Member  Gentile, I want to

         24  welcome Council Member Lewis Fidler from Central

         25  Brooklyn who represents quite a number of
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          2  immigrants.  Council Member Gentile.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair and good afternoon Commissioner.  Thank

          5  you for being here.

          6                   It seems to me- I'm a little bit

          7  concerned because while you say there's some

          8  impediments to having the make up of the Commission

          9  as it's now stated in the Intro, it sounds to me as

         10  if there would be no participation by the City

         11  Council on this Commission if you're saying that

         12  there's an impediment here. Am I correct?  I'm

         13  hoping you're not saying that the City Council

         14  should not have representation on this Commission.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LINARES: I think that

         16  the way that I express it in the testimony makes it

         17  very crystal clear that in the interpretation of the

         18  law as the Charter intends clearly delineates what

         19  is within the purview of the Mayor and what is

         20  within the purview of the City Council.  Legally

         21  speaking, there are questions here in terms of how

         22  this is structured and that's the point that I'm

         23  making.  In no way am I suggesting that what we

         24  shape in trying to address whatever challenges we

         25  have with the issue that we're discussing here today
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          2  would not involve in every way shape or form a

          3  response that would involve the City Council and

          4  you, as representative.  In fact, the reason why I'm

          5  here is because it's in the spirit of collaboration

          6  in pulling the best response that we want to have

          7  for day laborers or actually for the workforce and

          8  the future of the City requires for us to work

          9  together.  But we have to do it within the confine

         10  and the law and within the strict interpretation of

         11  what the Charter says.  And so, I could allow my

         12  Counsel to elaborate a little bit more if you're not

         13  satisfied with- there's a clear question here in

         14  terms of what the role of the Mayor, as the

         15  executive, is clearly stipulated and delineated by

         16  Charter and what this is stipulating when it calls

         17  for the City Council to appoint members of, you

         18  know, to be officers of this commission.  That is

         19  the only legal question that comes into the context

         20  here not the essence of what this law is pursuing or

         21  attempting to do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay, so

         23  then, what I'm hearing is that you support the

         24  objectives of this Intro.  Would you support working

         25  a way whereby the City Council has the ability, in
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          2  some way, to contribute members to this commission?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Anything that

          4  would involve further discussion as to how best to

          5  pursue what the intent of this local law is pursuing

          6  is something that I'm sure we can address by

          7  communicating with each other because the intent

          8  that is pursued is really to enhance the way we

          9  approach addressing the challenges that day laborers

         10  present for us as part of the workforce.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I must say

         12  that this bill was redrafted after intensive

         13  consultations with many of the groups that are

         14  sitting out here today as to how this commission

         15  should be constituted.  Certainly, I believe that

         16  the Members out here have wanted to see it in such a

         17  manner where the City Council does play a role,

         18  plays a significant role in how this commission goes

         19  forward and the types of recommendations that come

         20  out of this commission so I would-

         21                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  What you refer

         22  to a commission I could refer to a commission, to a

         23  task force, to some type of structure.  I'm not so

         24  much concerned about what we call it as long as we

         25  do have something in place that is effective and it
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          2  reflects the perspective that City government has

          3  and that includes the City Council.  But, clearly, I

          4  think what we're pursuing we're in the same page

          5  here.  What we want to do is to make sure that it is

          6  consistent with what the Charter stipulates is the

          7  role of Mayor and the role of the City Council.  I

          8  bow to the legal experts on that, interpreting that.

          9    I think we're in the same page when we're pursuing

         10  doing the best for day workers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Again, I

         12  think I hear you say that you want the City Council

         13  to have a role and, the fact that you're here today,

         14  is an indication that you want to work together with

         15  us.  But, I would join the Chairman in saying that,

         16  if that is an impediment, we need to overcome that

         17  impediment. The Council obviously throughout the

         18  five boroughs who, many Council Members here and

         19  some that are not here, that are very, very

         20  interested in seeing this commission coming to being

         21  and also to have the recommendation so we can get

         22  those public/private partnerships started with more

         23  job centers around the City.

         24

         25                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Well, I'm here

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2  today as Commissioner representing the

          3  Administration, but I would deny myself if I didn't

          4  acknowledge that in the ten years that I was where

          5  you are, the legacy of working ten years and being

          6  involved on behalf of New Yorkers.  There's nothing

          7  that I value more than the role that you play and

          8  the leadership you bring to bear representing, along

          9  with us, all New Yorkers.  That would be like

         10  denying what I believe for ten years and I hold

         11  firmly today that the City Council have a pivotal

         12  role to play helping shape what we do in City

         13  government to serve New Yorkers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Agreed.

         15  Thank you Commissioner.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRMAN STEWART:  Commissioner, you

         17  said that we are not the legal experts so, we will

         18  then defer that question as to that part of the bill

         19  to the legal expert and we will try to see if you

         20  can get your counsel and our counsel to sit down and

         21  try to iron out that.

         22                 Having said that, I would like to

         23  call on my colleague, Council Member Lewis Fidler

         24  from Brooklyn.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Commissioner,
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          2  you know I love you, right?  Well, you can comment

          3  on that and, by the way, we appreciate the fact that

          4  the Administration has allowed you to come here

          5  without subpoena.

          6                 I can't believe, especially having

          7  just heard what you said about having sat on this

          8  side of the table for ten years and appreciating the

          9  role the Council Members have to play.  Over those

         10  ten years, I think you probably saw the body mature

         11  further and assert its powers and sitting here and

         12  have to communicate the message that you've been

         13  sent with by the Administration that the

         14  Administration will oppose this bill because the

         15  counsel speaker gets to appoint members to the

         16  commission.  I know I wasn't here for your

         17  testimony.  I did read it very quickly and I see

         18  when you get to the "but", "but".  The only

         19  objection to this bill is the counsel members, the

         20  speaker's appointment.  I would ask you, in your ten

         21  years in the Council, do you not recall other bodies

         22  in which both the Administration and the Council

         23  selected members that sat as public officers?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  I want to

         25  share and be candid with you in responding.  Surely
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          2  you don't mean to imply that legally speaking we

          3  should entertain something that violates or legally

          4  directly or indirectly what the Charter mandates in

          5  terms of the role that the Mayor plays and the power

          6  that it has given by Charter and the role that the

          7  City Council plays.  It is a legal question that is

          8  raised in terms of how this legislation, this local

          9  law is proposing to establish this commission.  That

         10  is the issue of objection that has been legally

         11  presented to me and been made part of my testimony.

         12  Everything else that is presented here is something

         13  that we are prepared to work with the Council and to

         14  find an approach and a way that can have both the

         15  roles of the Administration and the role that the

         16  Council would play in shaping whatever structure is

         17  feasible to address this particular issue that

         18  brings us here.

         19                 Two different matters and, I think,

         20  on the one that we raised concerns with we're saying

         21  let's have further discussions on and see how we can

         22  approach it.  But, in the way in which it is now in

         23  this draft, I made it very clear in my testimony

         24  that there are legal concerns with it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  You did make
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          2  it very clear in your testimony.  That's the only

          3  part of your testimony that troubles me.  As an

          4  attorney I know that two lawyers can look at the

          5  same legal document and have five opinions.  I am

          6  quite positive that this Council has appointed

          7  members to commissions that are considered public

          8  officers that the Mayor also appoints to that have

          9  the power to request information and draft plans.  I

         10  don't understand the legal opinion that you've been

         11  given that this is a violation of the Charter.  I'm

         12  baffled by it and I asked you whether or not you

         13  would recall any particular instances during your

         14  ten years of such commissions but I think the

         15  Voter's Assistance Commission, for one, carries

         16  appointees of the Council and the Mayor.  They're

         17  public officers, they have the power to request

         18  information.  That's just the one which just pops

         19  into my head.  The Council appoints members to the

         20  Health and Hospitals Corporation.  And they're

         21  public officers.  So, I don't understand the legal

         22  opinion and, rather than debate it with you, I would

         23  suggest that if we just took out the word commission

         24  and called it task force, are we good?  Will that

         25  pass the lawyer test?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  I will have to

          3  say to you that what this Intro is pursuing, we have

          4  no problem with.  We need to help shape it and I

          5  think the leadership of the Council needs to play a

          6  role in that.  I think the coalition that are

          7  working with day laborers in addressing the

          8  challenges that they face need to play a role.  We

          9  certainly look forward to- my office will work and

         10  play a role in helping shape whatever structure

         11  makes sense for us along with other agencies on

         12  behalf of the Mayor.  Whatever we call it, I think,

         13  is secondary.  I think what the goals that we're

         14  pursuing of helping address any challenges that day

         15  laborers have is really what we have a common ground

         16  here on.  Because I am not a legal expert and there

         17  are those who can address this particular issue of

         18  concern which is the only objection highlighted

         19  here. Perhaps, then, if we give ourselves an

         20  opportunity to take a closer look at that, perhaps

         21  then we will be in the same page in some way as

         22  well.

         23                 But, again, this is work in progress.

         24    I believe and most of what my testimony highlights

         25  points to a commitment on the part of the Mayor and
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          2  this Administration to address the basic and the

          3  fact that we said that we, in general terms, support

          4  this Intro speaks highly about what the Intro is

          5  pursuing as far as day laborers are concerned.   So,

          6  we're not far-

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Commissioner,

          8  Commissioner. I guess I have low tolerance for

          9  elevating process over substance. So, we are all

         10  saying that we want to have this thing commission,

         11  task force, study group, committee, whatever.  I

         12  just want to be sure I'm hearing clearly from you

         13  that the objection is not that there will be

         14  appointees coming from the Council to sit together

         15  with appointees to the Administration.  That's a yes

         16  or a no.  Is that an objection?

         17                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Let me just

         18  share with you bluntly that, until the legal

         19  interpretation of what is being proposed here to

         20  establish as a commission is further discussed, what

         21  stands is what is in my testimony.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, ten

         23  since I'm not going to get a direct answer to that

         24  question, can I ask you who provided the legal

         25  opinion to your office that this was a Charter
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          2  violation?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  The law

          4  department.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I'm sorry.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  The Law

          7  Department of the City of New York, the Mayor's

          8  Office.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And- I guess

         10  the law department should be here Council Member

         11  Chairman.  Because-

         12                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  We-

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  We have-

         14  really the question, Commissioner, we could probably

         15  have a conversation between the lawyers for the

         16  Council and the Law Department that would take less

         17  than this interchange between you and I to get to

         18  the bottom of what you're not telling me.  If you're

         19  not telling me that the objection is that the body

         20  that is created, whatever it's called has appointees

         21  from the Council and appointees in the

         22  Administration on it.

         23                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Let me just-

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Because, I

         25  honestly- I can sit here and think of several that
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          2  already do.  I thought of the Voter's Assistance

          3  Commission which is a commission that has appointees

          4  of both the Administration and the Council.  So, I

          5  can't understand the legal opinion but, I'm just-

          6  the theory, forget about the legal opinion.  Does

          7  the Administration have an objection, yes or no, to

          8  whatever this body is having appointees from the

          9  Council and the Administration.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  The only

         11  objection that I interpret the Administration has is

         12  what it believes is in the power of the Mayor to

         13  exert, according to the Charter and not in the City

         14  Council.  If we want to have a discussion about the

         15  powers of the Council versus the powers of the

         16  Mayor, I think the discussion that we're having here

         17  in my testimony and what brings both of us here in

         18  this hearing is a common interest to address, in a

         19  genuine way and a serious way, the challenges that

         20  day laborers face as part of the workforce.  I think

         21  that that's what-

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Commissioner,

         23  I absolutely agree with you but the problem is the

         24  Administration is bringing a technical objection so

         25  that we can't deal with the substance of the problem
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          2  of immigration day laborers.  So, we can't move

          3  forward with something that obviously you and I and

          4  everyone sitting here agrees is an important issue

          5  that we move forward on.  And I'm just trying to get

          6  to the bottom of the difference of opinion and I'm

          7  not getting an answer-

          8                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  We're not

          9  going to solve it here.  Council Member-

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And I love

         11  you anyway but, you know-

         12                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  Council

         13  Member, we're not going to solve the problem here.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  But, I guess

         15  we need to have the lawyers together or we need to

         16  have the lawyers here.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  That's right.

         18  You're right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  To explain to

         20  me what seems to be an absolutely absurd legal

         21  opinion.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  You're right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I think we have
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          2  established that the counsel for the Administration

          3  and the counsel for the Council will be meeting on

          4  this issue because we feel that this is a mute

          5  problem and this is something that we don't see

          6  anything wrong with it but we would like to see the

          7  counsel for the Administration, at least, articulate

          8  why they think that this is a problem and we can do

          9  that thereafter.  But in the meantime, because we

         10  are on common ground, we can continue to discuss the

         11  problem that we have as far as day laborers are

         12  concerned.

         13                 Having said that, I would like to

         14  hear from Council Member John Liu from Queens.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman. Excuse me for stepping out for a bit on

         17  some minor MTA matter today.

         18                 First, let me just note for the

         19  record that this would not be the only piece of

         20  legislation or issue that the Administration

         21  purportedly agrees with the Council on in substance

         22  but for whatever technical reason is not able to go

         23  along with us. I just want to make sure that

         24  everyone is clear on the fact that this is not the

         25  only issue that is in this kind of category and it's
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          2  a shame.  It's a shame because this is a real

          3  problem, a real concern that we have to deal with as

          4  a City of New Yorkers.  A city that is supposedly

          5  the capital of the world.  There is no way that I

          6  doubt the commitment of Commissioner Linares and his

          7  Deputy Jimmy Yang and the rest of his team here.

          8  They are truly committed to this cause.  The

          9  Administration, however, is not.  Commissioner,

         10  since you're here, affronting for the Administration

         11  I will have to ask you a couple of, perhaps, tough

         12  questions.  But hopefully questions that I think we

         13  can get some answers to.

         14                 You, in your testimony, talked about

         15  One- stop centers and the fact that Small Business

         16  Services was undertaking an effort to include

         17  immigrants in this one- stop center.  What are the

         18  requirements for any individual to use the services

         19  of a one stop center.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  I will have my

         21  counsel who is more intimately familiar with a one-

         22  stop center prior to my arrival respond.  But, to

         23  your initial comment when you spoke about the

         24  commitment that I bring as Commissioner and my

         25  office and the team that works with me, every single
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          2  effort and initiative that I have undertaken, the

          3  Mayor is fully aware of, supportive of and is

          4  cognizant of the things that I'm doing.  Many of

          5  which I highlighted in my testimony.  So, I just

          6  want for the record to indicate that when I assumed

          7  this position I did my little bit of homework to see

          8  too that the things that I believe deeply, as an

          9  immigrant, are consistent with the perspective that

         10  the Mayor, Mayor Bloomberg, has in this

         11  Administration.  So, many of the things that I

         12  highlighted in my testimony is testament of the

         13  leadership that the Administration has and the

         14  collaboration that I have found with other agencies

         15  trying to address and respond to the needs of

         16  immigrants.  So, I just wanted to share that with

         17  you and I'll ask Jimmy to try to respond to your-

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Sure.  Let me

         19  just jump in and commend you for being a fine team

         20  player and you will certainly share in the credit

         21  and the blame that the Administration deserves.

         22                 MR. YAN:  I want to thank you,

         23  Council Member Liu, for acknowledging our commitment

         24  to immigrants communities and immigrant rights and

         25  let you know, just going back to legal issue. It is
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          2  a genuine legal issue that the law department in the

          3  Administration has and we're very open to the whole

          4  issue and we can discuss it more in terms of what

          5  types of composition would be possible in a

          6  collaborative process.  This is all a work in

          7  progress and we're glad to have our lawyers sit down

          8  with yours very quickly to discuss it.

          9                 In terms of the one- stop center,

         10  there are-

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Well, since you

         12  mentioned it, as Council Member Fidler did mention

         13  already, there's the Voter Assistance Commission,

         14  there's the Taxi & Limousine Commission, there are a

         15  number of other commissions that have members

         16  appointed by both the Mayor and the City Council.

         17  But, anyway-

         18                 MR. YAN:  So, we can look at specific

         19  ideas and discuss it.

         20                 The one- stop center is open to all

         21  residents of the community.  We're not seeing the

         22  one- stop center immigrant working group as the

         23  solution to the day laborer problem as the

         24  Commissioner noted.  It's one approach that we're

         25  taking to improve workforce opportunities for
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          2  immigrants and that has some relevance to the

          3  conditions of day laborers.

          4                 The program is open to all residents

          5  of the community.  There are some restrictions in

          6  the Workforce Investment Act regarding the access of

          7  people who are not of documented status to receive

          8  certain services provided under the Workforce

          9  Investment Act.  Anyone, regardless of immigration

         10  status can enter the one stop centers and use their

         11  resources.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  You say that the

         13  one- stop center is an example of how the

         14  Administration has tried to address the day laborer

         15  issues.  Are there any other concrete examples? You

         16  talk about engaging in community collaborations to

         17  raise awareness.  We have large groups of people who

         18  are literary standing on the streets, on the

         19  sidewalks, beginning in the morning hours all the

         20  way through mid day.  Many of them linger on through

         21  the afternoon because they haven't been picked up.

         22  Has anything been done to reach out to those people

         23  rather than to say that these one- stop centers are

         24  available to anybody regardless of immigration

         25  status.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  From the point

          3  of my appointment and subsequent to that with help

          4  of communications with groups that have been working

          5  directly with day laborers, I've held meetings.  In

          6  fact, next week I'm going to Staten Island to such a

          7  meeting.  Yet another meeting in regard to this.

          8  I'm planning to have a meeting with the New York Day

          9  Laborers Coalition that recently was formed.  This

         10  has been an on- going process and that's not even to

         11  mention my communication with the Council General of

         12  Mexico, for example, which also shares similar

         13  concerns.

         14                 Primarily, this has been a priority

         15  that I have given attention to and I fully intend to

         16  pursue on that.  When I pull together my first

         17  strategic planning a week a half ago at Gracie

         18  Mansion and brought the high level representative

         19  from City government and the vast networks of

         20  immigrants from the City.  I make sure that in that

         21  participation was included those organizations that

         22  are addressing the needs of day laborers and they

         23  participated in this strategic planning that we had

         24  to help shape the work that we have ahead.  So, this

         25  is a high priority.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, in this

          3  strategic planning that is revolving around this

          4  high priority in your office, what kinds of

          5  statistics could you offer this committee in terms

          6  of how many day laborers do we have in the City?  Do

          7  you have any statistics by borough?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  I think my

          9  testimony pointed to 6 to 8 thousand day laborers in

         10  our City, which is significant and it's probably a

         11  higher number even than that.  However, it is a

         12  significant number and I believe that this is a

         13  highly vulnerable population that we need to bring

         14  to bear all of the resources that we have available

         15  and to make sure that they know.  Vulnerable in that

         16  they can be exposed to exploitation and we want to

         17  make sure that all the resources that we have to

         18  bring to bear so that they feel that they are not

         19  alone; are there for them and I'm helping facilitate

         20  that, working with key agencies.  Whether it is the

         21  police department, or consumer affairs, or a small

         22  business service.  Whatever it takes, you will find

         23  me bringing to bear working closely with those

         24  organizations that are advocating on their behalf.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And has there
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          2  ever been any work done in terms of identifying or

          3  reaching out to the employers or hiring these day

          4  laborers?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  This is

          6  precisely part of what I anticipate will emerge from

          7  the discussions that we're planning to have and the

          8  strategic and effective approaches that we will

          9  begin to implement to address the problems they

         10  have. Enforcement is an important dimension here so

         11  that people who are looking to use their resources

         12  and the services that this population brings

         13  understand that when they violate the rights of

         14  these workers, there is punishment that comes with

         15  those violations and that we're willing to enforce

         16  the law.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.  Thank you Commissioner.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Commissioner, I

         20  want to go back to something that you said a while

         21  ago.  You wanted the immigrants to feel that they're

         22  not alone.  But, just recently, some 20/25 day

         23  laborers were arrested and charged with disorderly

         24  conduct for being on the sidewalks and waiting and

         25  all of that.  What are we doing to really let the
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          2  day laborers know that they're not alone if we see

          3  incidents like this taking place, which is part of

          4  the Administration, the police going out and

          5  arresting folks because they're hanging out when

          6  they are told to move and this sort of thing and

          7  they don't have a place to go.  What, specifically,

          8  are we doing to really show that they're not alone?

          9                 COMMISSIONER LINARES:  The best way,

         10  in my own experience having worked in instances

         11  where there can be cases that government may

         12  intervene and in the process have to address the

         13  rights that individual New Yorkers may have.  The

         14  best way to address avoiding violating anybody's

         15  rights or making sure that their rights are

         16  protected is when you engage with the stakeholders,

         17  whether it is the police or any other law

         18  enforcement agency.  We're speaking about the City,

         19  city agencies.  But, in the process we need to

         20  engage other stakeholders as well.  The

         21  organizations that work and support day laborers, we

         22  need to bring elected officials like yourself that

         23  are engaged in the ground and represent at the

         24  community level, the entire community.  We need to

         25  convey that workers who are helping the City of New

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2  York consistent with what's stipulated with

          3  Executive Order 41 need to feel that they're not

          4  alone.  They need to feel that there are resources

          5  available to assist them.  It is in our benefit to

          6  assist and also to make sure that any workers,

          7  whether law enforcement or not, that provide

          8  services in the City of New York needs to do it in

          9  the way that is consistent with the law and it is

         10  consistent with what it is stipulated in Executive

         11  Order 41.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Again,

         13  Commissioner, I just feel that we are not doing

         14  enough for day laborers for the fact that, in this

         15  day and age, we find that they don't have a place

         16  that they can meet.  Where the employers can, at

         17  least, meet with them.  Considering the weather

         18  elements that are there, I don't think that we're

         19  doing enough.  And to say that they're not alone,

         20  I'm fighting with that issue.  To say that they're

         21  not alone and that we're there for them when they

         22  have to go through such, not only stigma but also

         23  the fact they are being exploited and they don't

         24  have a place that they can meet.  We're fighting in

         25  just to put a commission together to at least look
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          2  into the problem to really protect them.  So, I feel

          3  at this stage we haven't done enough and we need to

          4  expedite this process.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LINARES: In my

          6  testimony, I think, what I tried to convey is that

          7  we're fully committed to continue to work

          8  aggressively and proactively to help respond to the

          9  challenges that this part of the workforce faces.

         10  The fact that we acknowledge that there's a lot of

         11  work ahead of us that we need to do in bringing all

         12  of the different sectors together so that we can

         13  have a comprehensive approach and response, I think

         14  is a testament to the fact that there is full

         15  commitment to really bring things to where they need

         16  to be.  I think that that's what we're really

         17  bringing and presenting today.  That commitment to

         18  really do all that we can.  And this is my charge,

         19  as Commissioner, I bring whatever I can bring to

         20  bear from the City Administration and its Agencies

         21  working with the communities and working with the

         22  City Council so that we can effectively respond to

         23  the challenges that they face.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Once again, I

         25  want to thank you Commissioner for your testimony

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2  and I'm looking forward to working with you closely

          3  on this issue.  Maybe we can resolve that question

          4  as to the make- up of the commission with the

          5  attorneys. Maybe we can do it in a short time so

          6  that we can move forward on this issue.

          7                 Thank you and we'll be reaching out

          8  to you.

          9                 Our next panel is workers from the

         10  Latino American Workers Project which we have Jairo

         11  Coatle, Joel Castro, Santos Santiago and Marcos

         12  Zosaya.

         13                 Please identify yourself and you may

         14  begin.

         15                 MR. CASTRO (Via Interpreter):  My

         16  name is Joel Castro and I'm going to talk about the

         17  organization of the Bay Parkway Job Center located

         18  in Brooklyn.

         19                 During the winter, the job center

         20  opens at seven a.m.  During the summer it's at six.

         21  The day laborers sign up on an attendance list in

         22  the order in which they arrive.  After that, we

         23  proceed to clean up both inside the job center and

         24  the exterior, that is, the street.  Once we have

         25  finished cleaning, we return to the job center where
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          2  contractors that need our labor can negotiate a

          3  contract with us.  The day laborers who get jobs are

          4  eliminated from the list, giving the opportunity for

          5  the next day laborers on the list to work.  Those

          6  who do not get jobs that day, keep their place on

          7  the list for the following day and in that way we

          8  guarantee that the members all get work during the

          9  course of the week.  All day laborers who arrive at

         10  the job center for the first time are welcomed and

         11  introduced to the rest of the members of the job

         12  center.  We then inform them of an internal order

         13  that governs our job center.  Such rules include,

         14  among others, the following:

         15                 - You cannot consume or sell

         16  alcoholic beverages or drugs in the center;

         17                 - you must respect women both inside

         18  of the job center and outside;

         19                 All day laborers in Bay Parkway have

         20  an identification card which certifies that they are

         21  members of this job center.  At the center we also

         22  have meetings and workshops. The last Saturday of

         23  each month we have a meeting to talk about the

         24  successes as well as the problems that affect our

         25  center and the surrounding community.  Every month
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          2  we also have workshops on construction, English and

          3  safety.  People can also take math classes and

          4  classes on other general areas of education.

          5                 MR. COATLE:  My name is Jairo Coatle.

          6    I come from the Committee of Day Laborers from the

          7  Bay Parkway Center in Brooklyn.  A colleague told me

          8  his story one time of how before he came to the

          9  Center one time an employer picked him up.  He

         10  worked for eight hours and at the end of the day

         11  they had left him there alone and without pay.  He

         12  didn't know how to get home.  Two weeks later, he

         13  ran into the boss at a restaurant and tried to claim

         14  his pay.  But the employer refused to pay him all

         15  that he was owed.  He only game him $20 for the work

         16  and, until today, the worker hasn't recovered his

         17  wage.  These are the risks of being on the street.

         18  One of the benefits of having a center is to be

         19  protected and supported.

         20                 In contrast, a friend had a similar

         21  experience.  A contractor took this friend to a job

         22  and left him working until 11:00 at night and never

         23  paid him.  Since he was a member of the Bay Parkway

         24  Job Center, the next day he went with the organizer

         25  from the Center to ask for his payment.  Because at
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          2  the Center they had taken down all of the

          3  contractor's information including his license

          4  plate, his address and telephone number, with that

          5  information and based on the laws that protect us

          6  they were able to recover this worker's wages.  The

          7  center also helps us find more steady jobs.  For day

          8  laborers, there's nothing better than finding a

          9  steady job.  That way you don't have to worry if

         10  you'll have work or not.

         11                 I returned to the Center with the

         12  same confidence as when I left and it keeps me

         13  optimistic, learning as much as possible from the

         14  classes offered by the organization.  It keeps me

         15  with the guarantee that I'll find another

         16  opportunity for a steady job.  Being a member of a

         17  job center brings a lot of benefits but also brings

         18  responsibilities.  It is our duty to be responsible,

         19  to be supportive, to present the organization in a

         20  positive way and to be responsible workers when

         21  we're hired.

         22                 On the street, it's common that a

         23  contractor hire a worker who is not trained to do

         24  the job that the contractor needs. At the center, we

         25  make sure that the people who hire us are taking the
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          2  worker who is truly qualified to do the job.  The

          3  workers receive training in the area that we

          4  identify as our area of experience.  On the street,

          5  we are vulnerable to mistreatment and dangerous

          6  jobs.  We are also exposed to the elements.  As

          7  you'll notice, the work centers are very important

          8  in the community because they benefit everybody.

          9  Our next step is to have our own building and this

         10  is why we are asking all of you for your support,

         11  Council Members, to help us build our center and

         12  improve our working and living conditions in the

         13  community.  Thank you.

         14                 MR. SANTIAGO:  Hello, my name is

         15  Gerardo Santiago. I'm going to speak of the benefits

         16  of being a day laborer in an organized job center.

         17                 I've been a member of Bay Parkway for

         18  three years. I find a part time job last one or two

         19  months at a time.  I came back again after that job

         20  was finished and saw the Center was improving.  In

         21  the beginning, we just had a tent.  We were on

         22  pavement.  As I kept coming back, the Center was

         23  changing and getting better.  They built a floor,

         24  bought better chair, tables, blackboards and a

         25  bathroom.  The Center was getting better and more
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          2  organized.  We keep the Center very clean, tidy and

          3  neat inside and out by cleaning around the Center.

          4  Central (sic) has helped me a lot, especially

          5  because rules of the Center prohibits drugs and

          6  alcohol.  I'm a recovering alcoholic and because of

          7  Central (sic) I have continued not using alcohol.

          8  Center has given me a motivation, a purpose and

          9  improve my self esteem.  So, I feel that I am

         10  somebody.  Without Central (sic) I would have gone

         11  back to drinking and alcohol and being depressed.

         12  Sorry.  They keep you focused on the American dream

         13  and that's positive.

         14                 In the Center, I feel that they treat

         15  us all like brothers.  It is a brotherhood, I love

         16  that part, to work as a team.  We have courses in

         17  English, safety and literacy workshops. Being

         18  organized is a key to making personal changes, big

         19  positive changes.  Also, the Center is for anybody.

         20  It doesn't have to be just for Latin Americans.

         21  It's for anybody that wants to join in. In the

         22  Center, I see people of all races.  Everyone is

         23  welcome. The stereotype of day laborers as

         24  undocumented immigrants is untrue.  I am a citizen

         25  and I am a day laborer.  I'm living proof that
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          2  citizens are day laborers.  Day laborers are all

          3  human.  They all work hard and do positive things

          4  for the community.

          5                 The Center is for everybody as long

          6  as they follow the rules.  The brothers are there

          7  are beautiful.  All are very hard working,

          8  spiritual, respectful and honest.  Isn't that what

          9  makes America?  I feel the spirituality of my other

         10  co-workers and environment of the job center gives

         11  us strength.  All that love we have there is created

         12  by everyone in the Center.  The Center is a success

         13  because of the solidarity and commitment of every

         14  member. We all teach each other, sharing our

         15  knowledge with one another. That part of the

         16  organization process is a team effort like that of a

         17  hand.  Together the fingers aren't strong but

         18  together they form a fist.

         19                 I would recommend that the City

         20  Council Members vote to create more job centers.  It

         21  would be a good improvement for the City of New

         22  York.  My preference for the Center to be run by the

         23  workers because we are all leaders and by

         24  organizations such as the LAWP, they are the experts

         25  working with the day laborers.  We are all leaders,
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          2  we are a team.  We have the leadership because the

          3  project gave us a voice.  Thank you.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Good

          5  afternoon, we're from El Centro de Hospitalidad in

          6  Staten Island.

          7                 MR. ZOSAYA:  (Testimony provided in

          8  Spanish).

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I was trying

         10  not to be rude but I was- you understood that your

         11  testimony should be no more than two minutes.  It

         12  seemed that everybody seemed to be going over but

         13  try to make it somewhat basically what he's saying.

         14

         15                 MR. ZOSAYA (Testimony via

         16  translator):  My name is Marcos Zosaya.  I'm

         17  Secretary of the Worker's Association at El Centro

         18  de Hospitalidad in Staten Island.  We were formed in

         19  1997 in Port Richmond where lived more than 1,000

         20  day laborers and their families and we're grateful

         21  to Council Member Vincent Gentile and the Council

         22  Immigrant Committee for its support of this

         23  legislation to form this commission.

         24                 The members of our association met

         25  last night to go over this proposal and to offer our
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          2  support.  We want to see a way to support and to

          3  help the centers in order to protect the life of day

          4  laborers and their families.  We are positive

          5  participants in the economy of Staten Island and in

          6  the City of New York.  With the help of the center

          7  where we work now, we are leaning how to pay taxes,

          8  we work hard, we work many hours without overtime in

          9  dangerous places.  We have formed small businesses

         10  to make better our own neighborhood.  We participate

         11  in a local civic association and other organizations

         12  on Staten Island.

         13                 Although not all of us have

         14  established our immigration status here in the

         15  United States we are citizens of New York City.  Our

         16  wives work as domestic workers and we have many

         17  children who are American citizens and who are now

         18  in school but in 10 to 15 years, they will be the

         19  new voters of New York City.  We will have a great

         20  impact politically in the future.

         21                 With the support of our center, we

         22  know that this commission will support our children.

         23    Day laborers center support the economy of Staten

         24  Island, day laborers center support the worker's

         25  rights and grow and make better relationships
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          2  between workers and contractors in businesses and

          3  factories.

          4                 It's our hope to normalize our work

          5  relationship as workers in the United States and to

          6  have the opportunity to stabilize our family lives

          7  and to be motivated to pay taxes and participate

          8  fully in American society.  We make a great positive

          9  contribution economically to the City of New York

         10  and to the State. We hope that this center in Staten

         11  Island will be part of your commission and we invite

         12  you to visit us.  We give classes in English, we

         13  gather the workers in the morning in order to give

         14  out work.  We have weekly meetings with the workers

         15  to learn of our rights and I myself have now secured

         16  regular work for ten hours a week through my

         17  participation in the center.

         18                 We have a domestic workers

         19  cooperative of 100 women and men's workers

         20  association of 300 day laborers and a group of 100

         21  children.  We have just formed an alliance last week

         22  with the federal government where OSHA will

         23  establish a training site at our site to protect

         24  workers and to teach them about their health.  We

         25  look forward to alliances as this commission is
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          2  proposed in the City where we live, where we work

          3  and where we contribute positively to the economy.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.

          6  Thank you for your testimony.  Our next would be

          7  Michael Higgins, from the Office of the Attorney

          8  General.  Michael Higgins.

          9                 Could you please just identify

         10  yourself and start.

         11                 MR. HIGGINS:  Yes, my name is Michael

         12  Higgins.  I am an Assistant Attorney General for the

         13  State of New York.  Thank you for allowing me to

         14  speak here this afternoon.

         15                 I work with the Attorney General's

         16  Day Laborer Task Force.  The Task Force has three

         17  main elements.  We do community outreach, we do

         18  advocacy and we work on individual cases which

         19  generally involve failure to pay promised wages or

         20  failure to pay overtime.

         21                 With all of the Task Force's work, we

         22  have found that we are much more effective if we can

         23  work in conjunction with community groups who have

         24  established good and trusting relationships with day

         25  laborers.  We think that there are at least two
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          2  reasons for this.  First, we realize that it's

          3  difficult for anyone.  Even people who have lived in

          4  New York City for their entire lives to know where

          5  to go when they haven't received the pay that

          6  they're legally entitled to.  Very few New Yorkers

          7  would know that they can go to the Labor Bureau of

          8  the State Attorney General's office in these kinds

          9  of situations.  So, community groups can play a

         10  vital role in informing day laborers about the

         11  resources that are available to them when they

         12  encounter these situations.

         13                 Second, the vast majority of day

         14  laborers are recent immigrants and many of them are

         15  understandably skeptical about approaching a

         16  government agency.  Many recent immigrants have not

         17  had good experiences with governmental agencies in

         18  their countries of origin.  Many are understandably

         19  weary of whether they can trust government lawyers

         20  here.  But when we can talk with day laborers

         21  through community groups that they trust and

         22  community groups that they feel comfortable with,

         23  much of that skepticism may melt away. Therefore, I

         24  urge you to support and to work with the community

         25  groups that assist recent immigrants as a way of
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          2  facilitating help in wage and hour disputes and as a

          3  way of facilitating help in the many other arenas of

          4  difficulty that day laborers face.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I have one

          6  question.  Have you read the proposed Intro?  You

          7  looked it over?

          8                 MS. HIGGINS:  Oh, the bill that is

          9  under consideration?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Yes.

         11                 MR. HIGGINS:  I'm not at liberty to

         12  comment on it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I know but I'm

         14  just asking if you did look at it.

         15                 MR. HIGGINS:  Yes, I did.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  What I wanted

         17  to find out basically, if by us creating these

         18  centers of by trying to facilitate the center, would

         19  that be able to help you do your job better?  Be

         20  able to reach both the employers and employees and

         21  be able to at least-

         22                 MR. HIGGINS:  Absolutely, I think if

         23  the centers are created in a way that people who are

         24  working in the community and who can establish good

         25  and trusting relationships with the workers play key
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          2  roles within those centers.  I personally feel that

          3  that would help us tremendously in trying to assist

          4  people who have these types of claims.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you for

          6  your testimony. Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. HIGGINS:  Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Next we have

          9  Javier Gallardo, Oscar Paredes, both from the Latin

         10  American Workers Project. Victor Lopez, who's a

         11  contractor, two years with the Bay Parkway Center.

         12  All right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Please identify

         14  yourself and you may start.

         15                 MR. GALLARDO:  Good afternoon.  My

         16  name is Javier Gallardo.  I'm a labor organizer for

         17  the Latin American Workers Project.  The Latin

         18  American Workers Project is a community organization

         19  that organize low income Latin American workers in

         20  going to improve the worker's living conditions in

         21  our communities. We are also a member of the New

         22  York Day Labor Coalition.  The New York Day Labor

         23  Coalition was established to bring together

         24  different groups representing day laborers,

         25  community organizations, academics, churches,
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          2  service providers and lawyers. Our mission is to

          3  develop a common proposal for what any law regarding

          4  worker's centers should be included. We all strongly

          5  believe that the workers should actively participate

          6  in any dialogue and decisions regarding the creation

          7  of job centers.

          8                 I'm going to talk about my experience

          9  organizing in the street as a coordinator of the

         10  United Day Laborer Community of Roosevelt Avenue.

         11                 Roosevelt Avenue is the largest day

         12  laborers pick- up site in the City of New York.

         13  Every day there are more than one thousand workers

         14  waiting to be picked up for work.  This area

         15  includes two neighborhoods:  Woodside and Jackson

         16  Heights in Queens.  It goes on from 65th up to 74th

         17  Street and on 69th Street from Broadway to Queens

         18  Boulevard.

         19                 The Latin American Workers Projects

         20  started to organize the day laborers in this area in

         21  late 2001.  At the very beginning, the area was a

         22  mess.  It was very difficult for us.  We didn't have

         23  bathrooms, trash cans, and the relationship between

         24  the workers and the community was not the best.  We

         25  looked for spaces in the community in which we could
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          2  hold our meetings and discuss the situation that we

          3  were facing everyday in the street.

          4                 In December, Reverend Joseph

          5  Anandashekar from St. Paul's Episcopal Church in

          6  Woodside provided us a space where we meet every

          7  Friday to plan the campaigns that we're working on

          8  and receive workshops about labor and civil laws,

          9  how to recover unpaid wages, health and safety at

         10  the workplace, HIV protections, human relations,

         11  etc.

         12                 One of our main achievements is in

         13  the organizing process is the relation that we have

         14  established with the Department of Sanitation.  They

         15  provide the committee with green trash bags.  We

         16  clean the streets and collect the trash in the green

         17  bags in order to maintain clean the areas where we

         18  look for work.  This effort has helped us to change

         19  the negative stereotype that a community has towards

         20  day laborers.  It has raised consciousness and

         21  increased the self- esteem among the workers and has

         22  improved the relationship with the community.

         23                 Another city agency that we're

         24  working together with is the Park and Recreation

         25  Department.  We came up with the agreement that
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          2  would allow the workers to use the bathroom inside

          3  HART playground located on Broadway and 69th Street

          4  from 7:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. and we help to keep it

          5  clean and in order.  This has been a tremendous help

          6  for the workers since now they can do their physical

          7  necessities in the right place.

          8                 Another important achievement was to

          9  obtain a space through Reverend Julio Cesar Panameno

         10  from Ebenezer Christian Church in Jackson Heights.

         11  At this space, the workers and other community

         12  members receive ESL classes twice a week in two

         13  levels, beginners and advanced.  Three members from

         14  the community volunteer to teach English as a second

         15  language.  On Tuesdays, the workers take leadership

         16  classes where they learn and develop their skills as

         17  community leaders of tomorrow.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Sir, could you

         19  please sum up. You're only allowed two minutes.

         20                 MR. GALLARDO:  Yeah.  I'm going to

         21  wrap it up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Try to sum up

         23  as soon-

         24                 MR. GALLARDO:  Community job centers

         25  will help us to alleviate the problems related with
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          2  the gathering of day laborers on the street such as

          3  traffic and pedestrian congestion, health issues,

          4  labor exploitation and tension with members of the

          5  community.

          6                 We strongly believe that the

          7  community job centers would provide enough jobs with

          8  fair salaries, healthy and safe working conditions

          9  if we involve key stakeholders including the workers

         10  first, community organizations, community members,

         11  business owners, homeowners, city agencies, local

         12  churches, elected officials and the New York Police

         13  Department.  Thank you.

         14                 MR. PAREDES MORALES:  Good afternoon.

         15    My name is Oscar Paredes.  I'm the Executive

         16  Director of the Latin American Workers Project.

         17                 The Latin American Workers Project

         18  seek solutions to inhuman and negative condition

         19  that day labor face on the streets every day,

         20  competing for jobs, exposed to different kinds of

         21  exploitation, violence and working under dangerous

         22  conditions.  We approached the workers and the

         23  community with offer to develop a proposal for

         24  improving the quality of life with integrity and

         25  justice by organizing day laborers at the street
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          2  corners and creating community worker center.

          3                 During the summer of 2001, I been to

          4  organize day laborer center in 18th Avenue in

          5  Bensonhurst, Brooklyn.  Most of the workers

          6  complained of being mistreated by abusive employer

          7  who refused to pay their wages after they finished

          8  their jobs, of police harassment and arrests, of

          9  physical and verbal abuse by residents of the

         10  community and business owner who didn't like to see

         11  them standing in front of their business or homes.

         12                 When the workers understood the

         13  meaning of being a day laborer and the importance of

         14  being organized, they lost their fears.  That

         15  realized that they were not alone and assumed that

         16  responsibility of continuing the struggle to build

         17  worker center to improve their living conditions.

         18                 In November 2001, as an organized

         19  group with leadership, we been to knocking on doors

         20  of religious and political leaders and local police

         21  to present them our proposal for quality of life.

         22  With success, on March 4 of 2002 all of us from 18th

         23  Avenue, we mobilized to the parking lot of Bay

         24  Parkway with a very clear goal:  To open a work

         25  center in order to improve our life conditions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Mr. Morales,

          3  could you just sum up because what is happening here

          4  is that everyone was told that they can testify for

          5  two minutes and we've been going beyond and

          6  practically everyone's been saying the same thing.

          7  So, if you can summarize and sum up because a number

          8  of the Members have other things to attend to.  So,

          9  try to sum up please.

         10                 MR. PAREDES MORALES:  The Bay Parkway

         11  Community Job Center, it is success (sic) because

         12  the workers they take leadership.  An organization

         13  like us, the Latin American Workers Project, even

         14  the workers, the boys, and we prepare them to become

         15  leaders.  The job center can't be successful if the

         16  workers don't have power to running that job center.

         17    Also, in the job center, 3,000 of workers they

         18  sign applications to getting job every year. 40% of

         19  those workers they have permanent jobs because we're

         20  preparing them to become skilled workers.  In this

         21  public hearing, we come to suggest you City Council

         22  Members, if you going to help us to open our job

         23  centers it's very important to be a success to let

         24  the job center be running by the workers and

         25  community organization like the Latin American
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          2  Workers Project who are expert organizing day

          3  laborers in New York.  That's going to provide the

          4  success in New York City job centers.

          5                 Also, it is very important your

          6  support because we understand and we are very clear

          7  that job center have to run with the City funds and

          8  also private foundations because it is very

          9  important.  We have our example, we're running that

         10  job center with no money and very poor condition and

         11  it is very successful because the workers they have

         12  the power and they become leaders.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. LOPEZ (Via Interpreter):  Hello,

         14  my name is Victor Lopez.  I'm a contractor.  I do

         15  interior construction for business like supermarkets

         16  and restaurants.  Sometimes I hire people for 3 or 4

         17  months, sometimes only a few days depending on the

         18  job.  I usually have 3 to 6 people working under me.

         19                 I've been hiring workers from the Bay

         20  Parkway job center since it opened.  Before they

         21  opened the center, I used to hire workers from the

         22  street.  The center is better because the staff

         23  leads me to the worker that I need.  When I pick up

         24  someone up off the street I don't know if they're a

         25  carpenter or construction worker or if they will do
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          2  a good job.   When I hire from the center, I tell

          3  the staff what kind of help I need and they match me

          4  with the workers who can the work.  When I go to the

          5  center, I have more control.  The quality of the

          6  workers at the center is better.  They are good

          7  people, they do good job.

          8                 I have been doing construction work

          9  in the New York area for 21 years.  I can't tell you

         10  how many times I have seen other contractors abusing

         11  their workers.  One Mexican worker was working with

         12  another contractor at some job site where I was.

         13  They could not understand each other because the

         14  contractor didn't speak Spanish and the worker

         15  didn't speak English.  The contractor got so angry

         16  at the worker he was yelling at him and almost hit

         17  him.  I had to step in and tell the other contractor

         18  I spoke Spanish too and he shouldn't talk to the

         19  worker like that.  Sometimes I have to tell other

         20  contractors not to treat their workers badly.  I

         21  tell them, he's a human being like you and me, he

         22  has feelings.

         23                 I know other contractor who don't

         24  treat their workers well.  They hire people, they

         25  work for two or three days and then the contractor
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          2  doesn't pay them.  Sometimes the workers don't have

          3  any work for two or three days, then they work for

          4  one week and the contractor don't pay.  A lot of the

          5  workers I have hired have told me about the

          6  contractor who don't pay them.  I know that the

          7  center can help people get their jobs back.  They

          8  will try to talk to the contractors and help their

          9  members to get their wages.

         10                 I used to teach construction classes

         11  at the center twice a week.  Ten to fifteen workers

         12  should come to the classes and through the classes

         13  their skills would improve.  I taught for three

         14  months.  When I go to give the classes, the workers

         15  go over there at night to take a class when the

         16  weather is cold.  I feel good because they're trying

         17  to learn something but I feel bad because we are out

         18  there in those conditions.  The last time I taught a

         19  class, it was ten below zero.  I feel very bad that

         20  people have to be outside to take that class in

         21  those conditions.  The City needs to give them a

         22  place where they can be inside and improve their

         23  skills.

         24                 I feel bad that the workers have to

         25  wait for work on the street.  I did not have to do
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          2  that.  You see people outside when the weather is

          3  below zero and they are waiting for work.  I think

          4  it's terrible.  It makes me feel really bad.  They

          5  need a place to be inside where is warm.  Maybe the

          6  City can provide some place inside.  Especially in

          7  New York, one of the biggest cities of the world can

          8  do better than this.  We can have permanent

          9  buildings.  I think somebody can do something better

         10  for these people.  They are hard workers.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.  Our

         12  next panel is Amy Sugimori, Mori, I'm sorry to

         13  pronounce your name wrong, Amy. Siobhan McGrath,

         14  John Arvizu and Hector Cordero- Guzman.

         15                 MS. McGRATH:  Good afternoon.  My

         16  name is Siobhan McGrath from the Brennan Center for

         17  Justice.  We're one of the members of the New York

         18  Day Labor Coalition.  Thank you for the opportunity

         19  to provide testimony today.  I'll try to be brief.

         20                 The Brennan Center is conducting a

         21  long- term study on the prevalence of workplace

         22  violations in New York City.  We're finding that,

         23  increasingly, laws that exists to protect workers

         24  are not enforced.  Workers in a range of industries

         25  endure minimum wage and overtime violations, unsafe
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          2  working conditions, discrimination and retaliation

          3  for speaking out.  Day laborers are particularly

          4  vulnerable to these violations.  It's been mentioned

          5  there's about 60 corners in New York City.  Mostly

          6  they're in the outer boroughs and on any given day

          7  as many as 8,300 day laborers are seeking work.

          8                 The majority of day laborers work in

          9  construction and most are hired by contractors who

         10  bring them to specific worksites.  The construction

         11  industry is project- based so employment

         12  relationship are always short- term.  In addition,

         13  employers frequently misclassify workers as

         14  independent contractors in order to sidestep

         15  responsibility for meeting legally required

         16  standards.

         17                 I'd like to review some of the key

         18  findings from the New York Day Labor Survey

         19  conducted in 2003 by Abel Valenzuela and Edwin

         20  Melendez.  Of the 290 day laborers surveyed, 50%

         21  experienced non- payment of wages over the prior

         22  year and 60% were paid less than agreed.  Health and

         23  safety risks are all too common.  The worst cases,

         24  as mentioned by Council Member Liu involve fatal

         25  injuries.  Of the workers surveyed, the majority
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          2  lack protective clothing or equipment and

          3  consequently 12% were injured on the job at least

          4  once.

          5                 Workers lack of knowledge about their

          6  rights may contribute to the prevalence of workplace

          7  violations.  61% of the surveyed workers said they

          8  did not know what rights they had and 80% did not

          9  know how to report workplace abuses.  Most troubling

         10  is the fact that even when day laborers do know

         11  their legal rights, they are effectively prevented

         12  from exercising them.  29% of the workers feared

         13  that if they report an abuse, they would either be

         14  subjected to violence, be fired, not be paid or be

         15  reported to the INS.

         16                 These conditions hurt workers, they

         17  hurt families, they hurt our communities.

         18  Successful models developed in other cities should

         19  be the starting point for creating solutions here in

         20  New York.  The centers that my colleagues are

         21  describing today have served as vehicles for

         22  preventing abuses, setting decent standards,

         23  facilitating community relations and fulfilling

         24  other needs of day laborers.

         25                 I therefore urge you to consider a
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          2  multi- pronged approach to addressing the problems

          3  faced by day laborers.  This approach should include

          4  funding for job centers run by and for day laborers,

          5  speaking out in support of day laborers when their

          6  rights are abused and implementing legislation that

          7  offers day laborers greater protection.

          8                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

          9  to speak.

         10                 MS. SUGIMORI:  Hi, I'm Amy Sugimori

         11  from the National Employment Law Project.  I would

         12  also like to thank council Member Stewart and other

         13  members of the city Council for the opportunity to

         14  speak.  I've submitted some more extensive written

         15  testimony so I'm just going to do some highlights.

         16                 Basically, I'm coming as a law

         17  advocate.  I usually advocate on behalf of low

         18  income immigrant workers.  I work with groups in the

         19  City and also around the country and based on this

         20  experience I have some conclusions to draw which I

         21  talk about more extensively in my written testimony.

         22                 As Sioban pointed out and as I think

         23  you'll see in her testimony as well, there are very

         24  prevalent wage violations and health and safety

         25  violations in the day laborers community.  Even
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          2  though daily laborers are actually covered by a lot

          3  of the Labor Unemployment laws that should protect

          4  all workers, there are various barriers to

          5  enforcement.  As Michael Higgins pointed out, and as

          6  also the general accounting office pointed out in a

          7  study in 2002, it's very difficult for government

          8  agencies to do their job of enforcing labor and

          9  employment rights with the day labor communities for

         10  a number of reasons.  But, one of the conclusions

         11  that has been drawn, similar to what Mr. Higgins

         12  said, is that working with groups that truly have

         13  member- led, member- invested community relations

         14  and are doing organizing is the best way for a

         15  government agency to develop successful partnerships

         16  and go forward and enforce laws.  So, we definitely

         17  also encourage the support and funding of day

         18  laborer centers for that reason.

         19                 There are various other law and

         20  policy changes that could be adopted to specifically

         21  address some of the abuses of day laborers and I'm

         22  happy if at any point in the future you would like

         23  to talk about what those are.  I think my three

         24  points would be very similar to Sioban's.  I think

         25  that it's very important and I'm very glad to hear
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          2  this being identified as an issue to start thinking

          3  about what the different law and policy changes that

          4  could be made to better serve day laborers would be.

          5    I think that the support and funding of worker-

          6  led, worker- involved day laborer centers like the

          7  Latin American Workers Project Centers is a very

          8  good idea.  There are also good models by the

          9  National Day Laborer organizing that work.

         10                 Finally, I thank you for calling this

         11  hearing, for taking an interest in this issue and I

         12  would say that really strong public statements by

         13  elected officials and politicians about the dignity

         14  and rights of people who are just trying to work for

         15  a living are very important.  People reference, in

         16  addition to employer abuse, there's also harassment

         17  by the police and there's also a climate that is

         18  sometimes hostile to day laborers who are just

         19  trying to get a job.  So, I think more public

         20  acknowledgment of their dignity and respect is

         21  really important.  Thank you.

         22                 MR. ARVIZU:  My name is John Arvizu.

         23  I'm here to speak on behalf of the National Day

         24  Laborer Organizing Network. Together the Network

         25  comprises of 29 member organizations in about 11
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          2  states which collectively operate about 35 day labor

          3  worker centers.

          4                 I wanted to begin by affirming the

          5  National Network's commitment and assistance to this

          6  process as you move on in finding a better, more

          7  humane solution to day laborer issues in New York

          8  City.

          9                 We're going to make all our resources

         10  and our expertise available to our member

         11  organizations and, ultimately, the Network stands

         12  behind the workers and what they want.  We do

         13  believe that this effort is somewhat over due, as

         14  Council Member Liu had mentioned.  New York City is

         15  somewhat behind in addressing this issue.  However,

         16  this doesn't mean that we're starting from the

         17  beginning.  As you are aware, there are great hard-

         18  working community- based organizations here that

         19  have been working with day laborers for years

         20  forming a trust and a partnership that is crucial to

         21  a success of a day laborer program.

         22                 We also wanted to assure the Council

         23  that many cities and municipalities across the

         24  nation have already developed and are funding day

         25  laborer centers.  The body of knowledge that
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          2  currently exists allows us to learn from the

          3  experiences, challenges and victories of day laborer

          4  centers already long established.  NDLON can offer a

          5  great deal of information and technical assistance

          6  and hopefully quicken the process in actually

          7  setting up these much needed worker centers.

          8  However, we also feel it's important to seek a model

          9  that is going to be unique to New York City based on

         10  the local needs of day laborers and of the greater

         11  community.

         12                 Also, we wanted to offer a word of

         13  caution that you not believe that workers centers

         14  will be the end all solution. They are a step and a

         15  very good step at that.  Realistically, the centers

         16  are an approximation to a solution.  As the speaker

         17  had noted, New York City is a city with a large day

         18  laborer population. The centers that are established

         19  will not be able to accommodate all the workers.  A

         20  likely scenario is that the corners that exist will

         21  not be impacted by the center.

         22                 For this reason, it's important to

         23  consider a program that includes the implementation

         24  of a citywide mediation and outreach component.

         25  This will allow a contracting organization to have
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          2  two or three organizers that can help mediate

          3  community conflict and address issues in areas where

          4  worker centers do not exist.

          5                 Lastly, we also strongly recommend

          6  that the commission take steps in including a

          7  component to either create, strengthen or enforce

          8  legislation that allows for greater protection of

          9  the workers.  Thank you.

         10                 MR. CORDERO- GUZMAN:  Good afternoon.

         11    I echo the comments by my colleagues and you also

         12  have written remarks so I'll try to be as brief as

         13  possible.

         14                 I prepared a report a couple of years

         15  ago-

         16                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Could you

         17  please identify yourself.

         18                 MR. CORDERO- GUZMAN:  I'm sorry.  I'm

         19  Hector Cordero, professor at Baruch College and City

         20  University of New York.

         21                 We prepared a report that summarizes

         22  some of the results from interviews we conducted

         23  with 36 community- based groups around the country

         24  that work on day laborer issues.  We talked to

         25  organizations in about 24 different cities around
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          2  the country including, Los Angeles, 4 in Chicago, 3

          3  in Austin, Texas and 1 or two in several other

          4  cities.  About 14 of the groups were in New York

          5  State, 12 in California, 6 in Texas, 4 in Illinois

          6  and 1 in New Jersey.

          7                 We looked at what challenges day

          8  laborers faced but we were also interested in the

          9  organizations themselves. Essentially, what we did

         10  was we looked at the centers that worked and the

         11  centers that didn't work in terms of attracting

         12  workers and employers.   What we found was that

         13  working with day laborers and developing a center

         14  was best achieved through a sustained and systematic

         15  process of community engagement and community

         16  building. There was no magic bullet, no just add

         17  water solution to the problem.  It took a lot of

         18  work and a lot of resources.  We found that there

         19  were four central characteristics related to the

         20  development of successful workers centers.

         21                 First, was the involvement of the

         22  workers in the design, development, setting of the

         23  rules and in the management of the activities and

         24  programs of the centers.  If the centers were not

         25  involved, centers generally did not work.
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          2                 Number two, sustained access to jobs,

          3  employment opportunities and programs that

          4  encouraged community involvement.

          5                 Number three, emphasis on public

          6  health and safety both at the location of the center

          7  and in the provision of related social services.

          8                 Fourth, we found that centers that

          9  had education and other social services and that

         10  included worker and human rights components were

         11  more successful in attracting both workers and

         12  employers.

         13                 I thank you for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I have a

         15  question that I feel that anyone can jump in and

         16  answer.  We have proposed this Intro and I guess you

         17  heard some of the discussion that went on.  A

         18  commission would be basically to evaluate and see

         19  best what these job centers, if that's the route

         20  that we may have to use, a job center and what it

         21  takes to build that job center, how it should be

         22  done.  We have that in mind.  Do you see this as a

         23  good thing to create the commission, not necessarily

         24  do a study anymore but, at least, to set up the

         25  framework for centers or even to look at the center
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          2  that is currently in place and at least set up

          3  guidelines for that center to be run.

          4                 MR. ARVIZU:  Yeah, I can answer that.

          5    Absolutely, I think that the commission being

          6  established is going to help establish those

          7  guidelines.  We don't want to just jump in to build

          8  the center and not really know what we're getting

          9  into.  We also want to assure that whoever is the

         10  contracting organization is going to have that, sort

         11  of the qualities that are important for a day

         12  laborer center to be successful.  So the commission

         13  is definitely important, although, some within the

         14  coalition do feel like we have studied this issue

         15  plenty of times.  There exists a large body of

         16  knowledge, especially with the network being able to

         17  provide experiences from across the nation.  So, we

         18  want to be able to provide that information and

         19  facilitate that through the commission so that it

         20  can quicken the process.  That's essentially what we

         21  want.  But, the commission I think is a great step

         22  to take in order to build that framework.

         23                 MR. CORDERO- GUZMAN:  I wouldn't

         24  think that they are mutually exclusive.  Part of the

         25  frustration stems from the fact that there's a lot
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          2  of action that has taken place and a lot of action

          3  that needs to take place fairly quickly.  While I

          4  would not encourage you to jump into anything, I do

          5  think that some action on the ground in terms of

          6  providing needed resources to the groups that are

          7  already doing the work would be essential.  You can

          8  take sort of a two- prong approach of creating some

          9  funds that can create some experimentation around

         10  the City and then also use that to feed into the

         11  work of the commission.  But I wouldn't try to do

         12  one or the other.  I think both are much needed.

         13                 MS. SUGIMORI:  I just, quickly I want

         14  to appreciate the fact that you, sort of, said a

         15  commission that not necessarily to do another study

         16  because I do think that that would be something that

         17  we would feel some sense of frustration about, as

         18  was pointed out, we do feel like there's a lot of

         19  wealth of information that we can provide and would

         20  be very happy to share, to talk about how this can

         21  be done.  Definitely our goal is:  We need to do

         22  something.  Interestingly, I was looking back in

         23  some of our archives at NELP, one of my colleagues

         24  had presented some testimony for the New York City

         25  Council in 2003 on the issue of day laborers and at
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          2  that time had also really suggested support in

          3  funding of centers.  So, it's something that I feel

          4  like we've been feeling for quite a while is needed.

          5                 MS. McGRATH:  And I also just think

          6  that we should talk more about what a commission has

          7  in its scope.  I think that the recent round- up of

          8  day laborers in Astoria, the arrest is a typical

          9  example of where organizers really do need support

         10  from elected officials to be able to respond to that

         11  sort of abuse really quickly.  I think we should

         12  figure out ways that those Council Members who have

         13  expressed an interest in this issue can help us with

         14  those sorts of situations.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well, I read

         16  that and I raised that issue with the Commissioner

         17  noting that these folks were arrested but, if they

         18  are not alone, how is it that these things are

         19  happening and no one is standing up for them.  That

         20  is one of the issues I raised with the Commissioner.

         21                 However, do you have any ideas as to

         22  what the commission- how it should be made up in

         23  terms of who should be on that panel, on that board

         24  and what's the reason.

         25                 MR. ARVIZU:  Well, from what I've
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          2  read and as the law is written, it seems like

          3  there's going to be a stasis for actual day laborers

          4  to be part of that, as well as day laborer

          5  organizations which help facilitate the process of

          6  being able to express yourself and giving your ideas

          7  to how the day laborer program in New York City

          8  should sort of develop and play out.  I think that

          9  the commission, as it's made up, is made up of a lot

         10  of different stakeholders and that's one of the key

         11  items of what any community advisory board or any

         12  community task force should be made up of.  You're

         13  going to find the best solutions once you bring in

         14  all the different key stakeholders, including and

         15  especially, the day laborers.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well, the

         17  reason why I ask that is the proposed plan,

         18  basically, calls for about 20 or so members and I

         19  think six is being appointed by the Mayor and six by

         20  the  City Council and so on.  I didn't think that

         21  the issue of the appointments in that ratio would

         22  have been a problem but, as you note here, we had

         23  that discussion earlier where the Commissioner says

         24  that legally it's like taking away the powers from

         25  the Mayor and I couldn't see that.  I think it's
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          2  further from the truth.

          3                 However, my question was basically,

          4  if you see that we can appoint people who are day

          5  laborers, also people who are immigration advocates,

          6  labor advocates and so on, to make up that panel,

          7  the best ratio that it can be so as to protect day

          8  laborers, I think that would have been the best

          9  panel or the best commission that we can find.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I want to thank

         11  you folks for your testimony and, once again.

         12                 MS. SUGIMORI:  I had one more think I

         13  wanted to add but I didn't say in the beginning.  I

         14  just wanted to identify myself also as a Member of

         15  the New York Day Laborer Coalition.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Alright.

         17                 MS. SUGIMORI:  I believe you are too,

         18  right?

         19                 MR. CORDERO- GUZMAN:  Yes.  And I

         20  think that the bill, as it stands, reflects the

         21  overwhelming consensus from all of the participants

         22  including academics, their groups and a lot of study

         23  as to what the right number of people and from where

         24  they should come should be.  You have a choice

         25  between making a commission that is effective or
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          2  making one that produces a lot of paperwork.  One

          3  that is effective is going to have to include

          4  workers centrally in it.  There's no choice about

          5  that, really.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Once again,

          7  thank you.

          8                 Do we have Emilio Gonzalez?  Emilio

          9  Gonzalez going once.  Alright.

         10                 Jose Fernando?  Jose Fernando going

         11  twice.  Jose Fernandos.

         12                 Javier Gonzalez?

         13                 How about Queen Mother Dr. DeLois

         14  Blakely?  Alright.

         15                 I have something to be read into the

         16  record.  And it reads.

         17                 To the New York City Council

         18  Immigration Committee Members Stewart, Barron,

         19  Fidler, Palma and Martinez.  From John Haynes,

         20  Workers Alliance of New York City and it's via fax.

         21                 Committee Members,

         22                 Thank you for the chance to be heard

         23  on this important issue.  I endorse Intro No. 592.

         24  I am presenting testimony today to address the

         25  Council's support on a related, albeit a narrow
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          2  issue- that of the deaths and injuries suffered by

          3  immigrant day laborers in New York City, at least 15

          4  since November 2001.

          5                 At that time, Jimmy Breslin, after

          6  traveling to Mexico to attend the funeral of a man

          7  killed on a Brooklyn construction site, wrote a

          8  book, The Short Sweet Dream of Eduardo Gutierrez.

          9  Mr. Gutierrez died, at the age of 21, from drowning

         10  in wet cement when a building collapsed.  The

         11  building was owned by a major fundraiser for then

         12  Mayor Rudolph Giuliani.

         13                 Mr. Breslin's subsequent

         14  investigations and writings on the incident shone

         15  light on a corrupt political machine which allowed

         16  the owner/contractor to flee the country and return

         17  only after negotiating an agreement including no

         18  jail time.   The owner/contractor, a Mr. Eugene

         19  Ostreicher, agreed to pay a $1 million dollar fine

         20  of which $100,000 was to go to the victim's father

         21  in Mexico.  The $50,000 cash payment to which the

         22  estate of the deceased, a single man with no

         23  dependents, was entitled was never made.

         24                 Indeed, I have never found a case in

         25  which any payment by Workers Compensation was made
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          2  to survivors in another nation.  By contrast, the

          3  five victims of the Wendy's Massacre in 2000 had

          4  their workers compensation cases adjudicated in

          5  seemingly record time.  Is one life worth more than

          6  another?  I would hope not.

          7                 The only reason the Gutierrez case

          8  realized any payment whatsoever was the high profile

          9  given it by the involvement of the Mayor's Office

         10  and Breslin's pursuit of the truth, which included

         11  transfer of a Buildings Department official who

         12  opposed the preferential treatment given the

         13  contractor.

         14                 This is particularly frustrating when

         15  the agencies such as the New York State Department

         16  of Labor, the Occupational Safety and Health

         17  Administration of the United States Department of

         18  Labor, the City of New York Buildings Department,

         19  the District Attorneys and the New York City Police

         20  Department are among the public agencies which have

         21  the information in their records- names and

         22  addresses of the deceased and their dependents.

         23  They will call and contact the families with news

         24  and developments on the case such as new summonses

         25  issued.  They won't ask the question, "Do you have
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          2  any food?", or "Are you homeless?"  Nor will they

          3  tell the families, "You may be eligible for worker

          4  compensation."

          5                 What we need is a rule change that

          6  would mandate any municipal agency investigating an

          7  on- the- job fatality to inform the surviving

          8  dependents of their right to claim worker

          9  compensation benefits.  In the case of building

         10  collapses or fall- related deaths, there may also be

         11  remedies available to the families or injured

         12  workers pursuant to Labor Law Section 240.

         13  Advocates should not have to be searching, calling

         14  embassies, funeral homes, mortuaries, churches and

         15  non- cooperating government agencies when those

         16  agencies have the information in their records.

         17                 We thank you for your support in this

         18  matter.

         19                 John Haynes.

         20

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  We will have a

         22  few words from my colleague, Charles Barron.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         24  very much, Mr. Chair.  I just wanted to say to this

         25  hearing that we should expeditiously pass this
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          2  resolution and it should have workers included in

          3  it.  I think out of this hearing, that to set up a

          4  commission absent of workers would be having a fine

          5  piece of legislation passed without really having an

          6  effective commission. So, I just wanted to support

          7  you 100% on that and this is a critical commission.

          8  Because, when you're talking about wages and hours,

          9  you're talking about health and safety of workers,

         10  this kind of commission must protect workers.

         11                 In addition, for the entire immigrant

         12  scene, we have to continue to struggle to (1) lift

         13  the cap so that we can have a greater number of

         14  vendors licensed.  I don't see them licensing or

         15  having any cap on regular businesses.  This is

         16  supposed to be a free market economy and anybody can

         17  open up a business so why put a cap on vendors.

         18                 I also feel that we should make sure

         19  that no one is asked their immigration status when

         20  they're going about getting licenses or anything

         21  else.  So, we have to continue our struggle to

         22  protect those who bring mega bucks to this economy,

         23  contribute to the economic stability of this

         24  economy, contributes to the cultural and

         25  intellectual capital of this economy.  We should be
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          2  respected. So, I'm glad for this hearing and let's

          3  keep the struggle going forward ever and backward

          4  never.  Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Barron.  The commission has proposed that it would

          7  be mainly made up of day laborers and immigrants.  I

          8  want to thank you for your support in this venture.

          9                 I also want to thank our staff

         10  Counsel, Jackie Sherman for doing a fantastic job.

         11  Also, we're going to be working diligently to make

         12  sure that this becomes a reality.  I know that the

         13  Administration has placed some sort of objection as

         14  to the method of forming this commission.  They feel

         15  that they are the ones who should be doing all the

         16  appointments.  However, we're going to be discussing

         17  it, we're going to have our legal staff meet with

         18  their legal staff to see if this could be

         19  adjudicated if we could make sure that no problem

         20  because, if they agree on everything else, I don't

         21  see that as being a problem because if they really

         22  mean what they are saying in terms of agreeing, then

         23  having some appointments from the City Council

         24  should not be any obstacle.

         25                 Having said that, I'm going to thank
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          2  you folks.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Just for the

          4  record, I just want my name added to the list of co-

          5  sponsors, for the record.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Yes, we will.

          7  I have already done so.

          8                 I want to thank you folks and, as of

          9  this time, this meeting is adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 3:42 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, INGRID SAEZ, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 31st day of March 2005.
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